# IN THE COURT OF APPEALS DIVISION I IN AND FOR THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

#### NO. 77557-0-1

## GENE ALFRED PALMER, II, APPELLANT/PETITIONER

V

## KING COUNTY, et al., RESPONDENTS

Petition for Discretionary Review by Supreme Court

Gene A. Palmer II, Petitioner, Pro Se

101 S. Pearl Street #103

Ellensburg, WA 98926

206-335-7337

#

Identity of Petitioner:

Petitioner Gene Palmer

Citation to Court of Appeals Decision

Palmer v. King County

Court of Appeals ,Div 1 No. 77557-0-1filed 3/4/2019

Issues Presented for Review

A) Is it a significant question of law, under the constitution of the State of Washington, or The United States, when the government fraudulently destroys and hides records required to be disclosed under the Public Disclosure of Records Act?

B) Is it an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court, when the government fraudulently destroys and hides records required to be disclosed under the Public Disclosure of Records Act?

C) Does fraud of the government in destroying and hiding documents justify reopening a summary judgment?

D) If evidence of fraud of the government is found by a party within a very RECENT (2 or 3 months) time before the motion under CR60(b) subsections including at least (4) and (11), is that a "reasonable time" in which to file a motion to vacate?

E) When the Court of Appeals makes a factual error such as concluding a party had evidence of fraud for 16 months when it was only 2 or 3 months and the motion and declaration to vacate used the word "RECENTLY" to describe the discovery shortly before the motion filing, and this is clearly pointed out to the Court of Appeals in a motion for reconsideration and they deny that in one word, should the Supreme Court be concerned about the governments fraud and correct this error?

#### Statement of the Case

A free democracy requires government disclosure of records. Lady justice may be blind-folded, but even she needs to read government records to do justice.

Appellant requested records from the government, which the government admitted existed and then did not produce because they said they did not exist anymore. He sued and the government won on summary judgment. Other arms of the government found the fraud in destroying and hiding the records by the government and ultimately disclosed this to the appellant after holding that information for some time, but appellant brought a motion to vacate within a reasonable time after he finally discovered it just recently (2-3 months) before he filed his motion. The trial court denied the motion. The Court of Appeals denied the appeal in error thinking that appellant had the information for 16 months when that was actually the government who had that. This was pointed out very clearly in the motion for reconsideration, but it was denied in a word. Please accept review.

#### Argument

A) Is it a significant question of law, under the constitution of the State of Washington, or The United States, when the government fraudulently destroys and hides records required to be disclosed under the Public Disclosure of Records Act?

Of course, government fraud in violation of the Public Disclosure of Records Act is so significant and contrary to the constitutions. Government public disclosure is necessary in the democracy and fraud of government to prevent disclosure is the death-knell of democracy.

B) Is it an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court, when the government fraudulently destroys and hides records required to be disclosed under the Public Disclosure of Records Act?

Of course, government fraud in violation of the Public Disclosure of Records Act is so significant and contrary to the constitutions that it is of substantial public interest.

Government public disclosure is necessary in the democracy and fraud of government to prevent disclosure is the death-knell of democracy. Of course the public is interested in their interest.

C) Does fraud of the government in destroying and hiding documents justify reopening a summary judgment?

Absolutely. And the motion to vacate needs to be filed within a "reasonable time" of discovery of the government fraud. This was done here.

D) If evidence of fraud of the government is found by a party within a very RECENT (2 or 3 months) time before the motion under CR60(b) subsections including at least (4) and (11), is that a "reasonable time" in which to file a motion to vacate?

Absolutely. Of course this is a reasonable time and not some 16 months found by the court to be the start of the clock when some third parties discovered it, and did not give it to appellant until recently before he filed his motion to vacate.

E) When the Court of Appeals makes a factual error such as concluding a party had evidence of fraud for 16 months when it was only 2 or 3 months and the motion and declaration to vacate used the word "RECENTLY" to describe the discovery shortly before the motion filing, and this is clearly pointed out to the Court of Appeals in a motion for reconsideration and they deny that in one word, should the Supreme Court be concerned about the governments fraud and correct this error?

Absolutely. Trial court's decision to grant or deny a motion to vacate under CR 60(b) will be overturned on appeal if there is an abuse of discretion. Lindgren v. Lindgren, 58 Wash.App. 588, 594–95, 794 P.2d 526 (1990), review denied, 116 Wash.2d 1009, 805 P.2d 813 (1991). Discretion is abused if it is exercised on untenable grounds for untenable reasons. In re Marriage of Tang, 57 Wash.App. 648, 653, 789 P.2d 118 (1990).

It was a clear abuse of discretion by the Court of Appeals to rule that the discovery by the actual party was 16 months, when he said it was only recently before he filed his motion to vacate. The Court of Appeals punted and avoided the real merits of the case.

The Court of Appeals did not properly read the declaration of pro se in support of

motion to vacate and got confused on the dates of discovery. Courts are to be more

understanding of pro se parties' paperwork instead of the opposite and skip over plain

English. Pro se litigant's pleadings are construed liberally and held to less stringent

standards than formal pleadings drafted by lawyers, i.e. courts can reasonably read

pleading to state valid claims on what litigants could prevail. It should do so despite

failure to cite proper legal authority, confusion of legal theories, poor syntax and

construction, or litigants unfamiliar with pleading requirements.

Freeman v. Dept of Corrections 949F2d360 10th Circuit 1991

US v. Detrichs 940F2d37 2nd Circuit

Boag v. Maedouall 454 US 364 70 Lev 2d 551 102 (5th Cir) 700 1989

Haines v. Kerner 404 US 579 30 LE 2<sup>nd</sup> 652925c 9<sup>th</sup> Circuit 1974

Conclusion

The court should grant review of all issues presented herein and award petitioner

attorney's fees and costs under equity, Olympic Steamship, supra, and the civil rules and

civil procedure statues. The court should remand this matter for a new trial and award

petitioner attorney's fees and costs.