FILED SUPREME COURT STATE OF WASHINGTON 7/10/2019 2:31 PM BY SUSAN L. CARLSON CLERK

NO. 97246-0

SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

KING COUNTY, ET AL.,

Respondent,

٧.

GENE ALFRED PALMER II,

Petitioner.

ANSWER OPPOSING PETITION FOR REVIEW

DANIEL T. SATTERBERG King County Prosecuting Attorney

MONIQUE COHEN Senior Deputy Prosecuting Attorney Attorney for Respondent

> King County Prosecuting Attorney W400 King County Courthouse 516 3rd Avenue Seattle, Washington 98104 (206) 477-1120

A. INTRODUCTION

Appellant, Gene Palmer, submitted a public records request to the King County Prosecuting Attorney's Office (PAO) in 2013 for 911 recordings. The PAO conducted a thorough search for the recordings and determined no records existed.

Palmer filed this lawsuit in May 2015 and the trial court dismissed Palmer's case on summary judgment. CP 421-425. The trial court found that King County had conducted "adequate and reasonable searches to determine whether it possessed any records responsive to [Palmer's] public disclosure requests and having found none, [King County] has no legal obligation to produce a record the agency does not have or no longer exists." CP 424-425. That conclusion complies with the Washington State Supreme Court's ruling in <u>Fisher Broadcasting v. City of Seattle</u>, 180 Wn.2d 515, 522, 326 P.3d 688 (2014).

In September 2016 Palmer filed a second CR 60(b) motion. Palmer alleged that he had recently discovered new evidence that two King County prosecuting attorneys were under indictment in United States District Court. The PAO responded and presented evidence of search results of court dockets revealing that neither of the two King County attorneys were under indictment. The trial

- 1 -

court denied Palmer's second CR 60(b) motion on September 26, 2017.

Palmer filed an appeal of the denial of his second CR(60)(b) motion. The Court of Appeals found that Palmer's second motion to vacate was not filed within a reasonable time and that the trial court did not abuse its discretion in denying it.

B. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

Respondent, King County, by and through the King County Prosecuting Attorney's Office, respectfully requests that this Court deny the petition for review.

C. <u>COURT OF APPEALS OPINION</u>

The Court of Appeals decision at issue is <u>Gene Alfred</u> <u>Palmer II v. King County, et. al.</u>, No. 77557-0-I, filed March 4, 2019 (unpublished).

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

1. Superior Court Proceedings

On May 12, 2015, the Petitioner, Gene Alfred Palmer II, filed a lawsuit against King County claiming violations of the Public Records Act. CP 342-46. Palmer amended his complaint on May 15, 2015, and added the Seattle Police Department, a subdivision of the City of Seattle (Seattle), as defendant. CP 347-51. King County and Seattle filed summary judgment motions against Palmer. CP 352-419. The summary judgment motions were heard before King County Superior Court Judge Jean Rietschel on May 6, 2016. CP 420. The trial court granted summary judgment in favor of King County and Seattle. CP 421-25. Summary judgment was granted on the grounds that King County had conducted an adequate and reasonable search to determine whether any responsive records existed. Finding none, King County was under no obligation to produce records that did not have or no longer existed. CP 424-425. Additionally, the court determined that Palmer failed to raise any genuine issue of material fact. CP 424-425.

On June 6, 2016 Palmer filed his first CR 60(b) motion based on discovery of new evidence. The trial court denied his motion and Palmer did not appeal.

On June, 6, 2016, over a year after the dismissal of his lawsuit, Palmer also filed a notice of appeal of the trial court's summary judgment orders. CP 426-27. Review of his appeal was terminated

- 3 -

on May 5, 2017, for failure to prepare the record on review. CP 428-30.

On September 5, 2017, Palmer filed a second CR 60(b) motion with the trial court claiming newly discovered evidence that two King County prosecuting attorneys were under federal indictment. CP 282-314. Palmer provided no evidence to support his allegation and King County and Seattle filed responses disproving his allegations. CP 431-70. The motion was heard, without argument, and the trial court denied Palmer's motion on September 26, 2017. CP 315-16.

2. Court of Appeals Unpublished Decision

Palmer appealed to Division I of the Court of Appeals. CP 317-21. The scope of the appeal was "limited to the propriety of the trial court's September 2017 order denying Palmer's second CR 60(b) motion." Opinion at 4. In an unpublished opinion, the court unanimously affirmed the dismissal, concluding that his CR 60(b) motion was not timely filed.

Palmer sought reconsideration on March 4, 2019, and the Court of Appeals denied his motion on April 24, 2019.

- 4 -

E. <u>ARGUMENT</u>

1. The Court Should Deny the Petition for Review.

This Court should deny Palmer's petition for review. The Court of Appeal's decision is consistent with Washington law and does not present an issue of substantial public interest requiring determination by this Court. *See* RAP 13.4.

The Court of Appeals properly affirmed the trial court's ruling that Palmer's second CR 60(b) motion to vacate orders of summary judgment was untimely. The issues raised by Palmer have no basis in fact and his petition does not qualify for review under RAP 13.4.

Under RAP 13.4, a petition for review will be accepted by this Court *only* (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a published decision of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court.

Palmer's petition does not meet any of those strict criteria, despite his conclusory assertions to the contrary.

2. Palmer has not shown that the decision of the Court of Appeals conflicts with any decision of this Court or with another published decision by the Court of Appeals.

The Court of Appeals properly concluded that Palmer's motion for relief from judgment was time-barred under CR 60. CR 60 authorizes a trial court to relieve a party from final judgment, order, or proceeding in specific instances. These include fraud, misrepresentation, misconduct, or "[n]ewly discovered evidence which by due diligence could not have been discovered in time to move for a new trial under rule 59(b)[.]" CR 60(b)(3)(4). The decision to grant or deny a motion to vacate an order under CR 60(b) is within the trial court's discretion. Jones v. City of Seattle, 179 Wn.2d 322, 360, 314 P.3d 380 (2013).

A CR 60(b) motion based on newly discovered evidence must be made within a reasonable time and "not more than 1 year after the judgment[.]" CR 60(b). <u>Luckett v. Boeing</u>, 98 Wn. App. 307, 310, 989, P.2d 1144 (1999). CR 6(b) prohibits enlargement of time under CR 60(b).

Here, the order for summary judgment was entered in favor of King County and Seattle on May 6, 2016. CP 421-425. Palmer filed his Motion for Relief on September 5, 2017. CP 282-314.

- 6 -

Given that over one year elapsed between the date of the judgment and date of filing, the court ruled that Palmer's motion was time barred under CR 60(b)(3) in accordance with long standing court rules and established case law; the Court of Appeals agreed.

Palmer's petition is based on mere allegations and speculation. There is no evidence or indication that summary judgment was entered as a result of fraud, misrepresentation, or misconduct. Mere allegations and speculation are not sufficient to relieve a party from final judgment under CR 60. See <u>Vance v</u>. <u>Offices of Thurston Cty. Comm'rs</u>, 117 Wn. App. 660, 71 P.3d 680 (2003) (A mere allegation of diligence is not sufficient to support a motion for relief from judgment based on newly discovered evidence; the moving party must state facts that explain why the evidence was not available for trial.)

Palmer has not shown that the decision of the Court of Appeals, in his case, conflicts with any decision of this Court or with another published decision by the Court of Appeals. He fails to demonstrate why this is a significant question of law that this Court needs to resolve.

- 7 -

3. There is no substantial public interest

Palmer makes conclusory pronouncements that his arguments involve an issue of substantial public interest. Palmer, however, fails to show how his inability to adhere to the longestablished court rules and case law regarding the timeliness of motions, or the determination of facts by the trial court denying his motion, rises to such a level.

F. CONCLUSION

The Court should deny Palmer's petition.

The issues raised by Palmer do not meet any of the strict criteria required under RAP 13.4.